
EPA	Community	Relations	Plan	
Former	Ascutney	Mountain	Resort	Base	Lodge	

449	Ski	Tow	Road	
Brownsville,	Vermont		

	

	
	

December	15,	2016	
	

Prepared	by:	
Ascutney	Outdoors	

PO	Box	101	
Brownsville,	Vermont	05037	

	
	

	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	
And:	

Southern	Windsor	County	Regional	Planning	Commission	
38	Ascutney	Park	Road,	PO	Box320	

Ascutney,	Vermont	05030	
	



Community	Relations	Plan		
Former	Ascutney	Mountain	Resort	Base	Lodge	

December	15,	2016	
	

Page	2	of	5	 	

Contents	
	
A.	 Overview	and	Background	 3	
B.	 Community	Relations	Plan	 4	
C.	 Spokesperson	and	Information	Repository	 4	
E.	 Chronology	of	Community	Involvement	 4	
F.	 Community	Support	Letters	 5	
G.	 Key	Community	Concerns	 5	
H.	 Continued	Community	Involvement	 5	
	
	
Appendices:	
	
A.	 Maps	
B.	 Selectboard	Minutes	
C.	 Community	and	Governmental	Support	Correspondence	
	



Community	Relations	Plan		
Former	Ascutney	Mountain	Resort	Base	Lodge	

December	15,	2016	
	

Page	3	of	5	 	

A.	 Overview	and	Background	
	
This	document	is	a	community	relations	plan	for	the	former	Ascutney	Mountain	
Resort	Base	Lodge	Property	in	West	Windsor,	Vermont	(property).	The	property	
consists	of	a	2.19-acre	parcel	on	the	south	side	of	Ski	Tow	Road.	Maps	showing	the	
site	location	map	and	the	property	boundaries	are	included	in	Appendix	A.	This	plan	
was	funded	using	EPA	Brownfields	Assessment	Grant	Funding	awarded	to	SWCRPC	
in	2013	via	Grant	#BF-96180601.			
	
The	property	includes	the	partially	burned	base	lodge,	a	cell	tower,	and	a	gravel	
driveway.	The	property	is	in	the	process	of	being	acquired	by	Ascutney	Outdoors,	a	
registered	501(c)(3)	corporation	formed	in	2015	to	acquire	the	former	ski	area	
facilities	and	operate	them	for	the	benefit	of	the	community.	
	
The	Ascutney	Mountain	ski	resort	was	first	developed	in	the	years	following	World	
War	II.		At	that	time,	the	ski	area	consisted	of	a	rope	tow	and	a	base	lodge	located	
approximately	500’	west	of	this	property.		The	portion	of	the	ski	resort	where	this	
property	was	eventually	created	was	undeveloped	through	the	early	1960’s.	In	
1963-64,	the	“new”	base	lodge	was	constructed	at	this	location.	The	“new”	base	
lodge	operated	for	over	55	years,	undergoing	a	major	renovation	in	the	mid-1980’s.	
	
In	2010	the	ski	area	closed.	The	base	lodge	remained	vacant	following	the	closure,	
except	for	apparatus	in	the	basement	related	to	the	operational	cell	phone	tower,	
and	controls	for	the	Town’s	municipal	water	system.	In	January	2015	the	base	lodge	
building	partially	burned.		It	has	remained	vacant	since	the	fire	and	no	renovations	
or	cleanup	has	been	done.		
	
As	part	of	its	pre-purchase	environmental	due	diligence,	Ascutney	Outdoors	has	
been	working	with	the	Southern	Windsor	County	Regional	Planning	Commission	
(SWCRPC).		Utilizing	SWCRPC’s	Brownfields	Assessment	funding,	Ascutney	
Outdoors	has	completed	a	Phase	I	Environmental	Site	Assessment,	performed	an	
asbestos	inspection	on	the	burned-out	base	lodge,	and	has	prepared	this	
Community	Relations	Plan	(CRP).	The	asbestos	inspection	determined	that	
asbestos-containing	materials	(ACM)	were	found	in	portions	of	the	burned	out	base	
lodge.	
	
Next	steps	for	Ascutney	Outdoors	include	demolishing	the	burned	out	base	lodge	
and	returning	the	property	to	greenspace.	Part	of	the	demolition	will	include	
asbestos	abatement	and	Ascutney	Outdoors	is	planning	to	utilize	the	SWCRPC’s	
Brownfields	Revolving	Loan	Fund	(RLF)	to	perform	the	asbestos	abatement.			
	
Once	the	former	base	lodge	is	demolished,	the	property	will	be	re-graded	and	
returned	to	undeveloped	greenspace	within	the	rejuvenated	recreational	area.	



Community	Relations	Plan		
Former	Ascutney	Mountain	Resort	Base	Lodge	

December	15,	2016	
	

Page	4	of	5	 	

B.	 Community	Relations	Plan	
	
This	CRP	is	a	requirement	for	utilizing	SWCRPC	RLF	funding	for	the	asbestos	
abatement.		The	CRP	outlines	the	public	process	to	date	and	forthcoming,	and	how	
Ascutney	Outdoors	has	involved,	and	will	continue	to	involve,	local	residents,	town	
officials,	and	organizations	in	the	decision-making	process	regarding	the	
environmental	cleanup	at	the	site.	The	successful	environmental	cleanup	and	
subsequent	greenspace	redevelopment	property	hinges	on	informed	citizen	and	
local	government	involvement.	
	

C.	 Spokesperson	and	Information	Repository	
	
The	spokesperson	for	this	project	is	Glenn	Seward	of	Ascutney	Outdoors.	Ascutney	
Outdoors	has	been	working	with	LE	Environmental	(LEE)	on	environmental	site	
assessment	and	with	Clay	Point	Associates	on	the	asbestos	inspection	and	
abatement	planning.	Communicating	the	results	of	the	assessments,	inspections	and	
planning	is	being	performed	by	Ascutney	Outdoors.	Contact	information	is	as	
follows:	
	
Glenn	Seward	
Ascutney	Outdoors	
PO	Box	101	
Brownsville,	Vermont	05037	
	802.230.6146	
gbs@shellyseward.com		 		
	

E.	 Chronology	of	Community	Involvement	
	
The	acquisition	and	demolition	of	the	former	base	lodge	has	been	on	the	agenda	for	
discussion	at	four	West	Windsor	Selectboard	meetings	thus	far.	The	dates	of	these	
meetings	include	September	12	and	26,	October	24,	and	November	28,	2016.	The	
discussions	have	included	Ascutney	Outdoors’	pending	acquisition	of	the	base	lodge	
property,	environmental	assessments,	asbestos	inspections,	and	coordinating	the	
building	demolition	with	the	disconnection	of	the	water	system	and	cell	tower	
apparatus.	Copies	of	the	selectboard	minutes	are	included	in	Appendix	B.	Ascutney	
Outdoors	will	continue	to	utilize	West	Windsor	Selectboard	Meetings	as	the	primary	
vehicle	for	communicating	its	progress	and	planning	to	the	general	public.		
	



Community	Relations	Plan		
Former	Ascutney	Mountain	Resort	Base	Lodge	

December	15,	2016	
	

Page	5	of	5	 	

F.	 Community	Support	Letters	
	
In	addition	to	its	regular	presence	at	West	Windsor	Selectboard	meetings,	Ascutney	
Outdoors	has	reached	out	to	various	governmental	units	and	community	
organizations	and	has	obtained	letters	of	support	for	the	acquisition,	demolition	and	
greenspace	redevelopment.	These	include	the	Town	of	West	Windsor	Selectboard,	
the	West	Windsor	Conservation	Commission,	the	Town	of	West	Windsor	Planning	
Commission,	and	the	Ascutney	Mountain	Property	Owner’s	Association.		Copies	of	
the	correspondence	are	included	in	Appendix	C.	
	

G.	 Key	Community	Concerns	
	
During	the	selectboard	meetings	and	in	correspondence	referenced	above,	key	
concerns	that	have	been	raised	primarily	include	the	presence	of	asbestos	in	the	
burned	out	building	and	the	burned	building	itself.		Both	these	issues	will	be	
addressed	during	the	pending	work.	A	properly	certified	and	insured	asbestos	
abatement	company	will	be	procured	to	conduct	the	necessary	asbestos	abatement	
prior	to	the	demolition	of	the	building.	Building	materials	will	be	properly	disposed	
of	in	accordance	with	the	State	of	Vermont	solid	waste	rules.	There	is	substantial	
local	support	for	removing	the	building	and	returning	it	to	greenspace	as	part	of	the	
recreational	area.	
	

H.	 Continued	Community	Involvement	
	
Ascutney	Outdoors	will	continue	to	present	updates	through	the	West	Windsor	
Selectboard	until	the	project	has	been	completed.	This	schedule	assumes	that	the	
RLF	cleanup	funding	becomes	available	after	January	1,	2017.	
	
Anticipated	Cleanup	Start	Date:	January	1,	2017	
Selectboard	Meeting	to	discuss	cleanup	ongoing	
Cleanup	Completion	Date:	May	1,	2017	
	
	



Community	Relations	Plan		
Former	Ascutney	Mountain	Resort	Base	Lodge	

December	15,	2016	
	

	 	

	
	
	

APPENDIX	A	
	

MAPS	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	 	



LE # 16-078
Date: October 28, 2016
Source: msrmaps.com

Ascutney Mountain Resort Base Lodge
449 Ski Tow Road, West Windsor, Vermont

1984 USGS Map

alan
Callout
Property





Community	Relations	Plan		
Former	Ascutney	Mountain	Resort	Base	Lodge	

December	15,	2016	
	

	 	

	
	
	
	
	
	

APPENDIX	B	
	

SELECTBOARD	MINUTES	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	 	



West Windsor Selectboard 

Draft Minutes 

September 26, 2016 

 

Present: Dick Beatty, Tom Kenyon, Win Johnson, Bruce Boedtker, Al Keiller, Steve Bodley, Mike 

Spackman, Steve Crihfield, Frank Kelley (Site Specialist for AT&T), Katharine Otto (SWCRPC), 

Martha Harrison, Cathy Archibald 

 

1) Call to Order – Selectboard Chair Dick Beatty called the meeting to order at 8:00 AM. 

2) Changes or additions to the agenda – Tom asked that items to be discussed be attached, with the 

agenda, in an email to the Selectboard.   

3) Announcements/Public Comment – The refurbished Town Hall clock has been installed. 

4) Certificates of Occupancy/Conformance: Al Keiller – Al said the Planning Commission (PC) 

discussed the backlog of certificates of occupancy, after the Town Clerk brought it to their 

attention. Al said the person receiving the zoning permit is supposed to apply for a certificate of 

occupancy (C.O.) when the work is done, but many of them don’t. Al said the PC has asked the 

Zoning Administrator (ZA) to provide them with a report at their November meeting of all 

outstanding permits and their status. Al said the PC is also currently revising the zoning 

regulations and will narrow the requirement for a C.O. to those situations where there will 

actually be occupancy (i.e. a habitable structure). For those permits that don’t result in 

occupancy, there can be a certificate of compliance. Win asked if the permittee will have to 

initiate the process for obtaining a certificate of compliance. Al said the PC still has to discuss 

that. Win wondered about the difference between the two certificates if both require a site visit. 

Al said the PC has asked the Regional Planning Commission to suggest some language for the 

regulations. Al said the current ZA is going to deal with the backlog from 2015 forward and 

Selectboard member Tom Kenyon has offered to be employed by the town to deal with the 

remaining backlog. Al said the PC recommends that the Selectboard hire Tom Kenyon to do 

that work at a cost not to exceed $3,500. Win said he thinks it would be awkward to give the 

work to Tom without considering anyone else. Al said the current ZA said he would welcome 

Tom’s involvement to get the work done expeditiously. Al said the PC feels it’s important to 

close these out at a minimum of cost and it’s too much work for the current ZA. Tom said he 

thinks it’s important to have someone who knows where everyone lives do the work. Win 

agreed that Tom has unique qualifications. Tom said he would like to have the work done by 

January 1, 2017. Win suggested posting the job on the website for a week and asked if we have 

any policy on this. Dick said he doesn’t have a problem with it as long as we have money in the 

budget for it, but he’s also okay with listing it on the website for a week. Tom said he would be 

paid the same as all the other part-time employees. Dick said he thinks Tom has the background 

and the ability to do it. Win said, given Tom’s unique qualifications, he would be okay with it in 

this case but would ask that, in the future, we post things like this. Win moved to accept the 

recommendation of the PC and hire Tom Kenyon to address the backlog in certificates of 

occupancy at a cost not to exceed $3,500. Dick seconded the motion, which passed with 

Tom abstaining. Win asked Al about the draft Rules of Procedure document. Al said the PC 

frequently changes their meeting date or time and would like the flexibility to continue to do so. 

Win suggested that the PC just cancel their regular meeting when necessary and warn a special 

meeting. Al agreed.  

5) AT&T temporary site: Frank Kelley – Frank said AT&T is trying to get permits and a lease in 

place for a permanent site on the north peak of Mt. Ascutney. Frank said they would like to do 

the construction after the State Park closes and before the weather turns bad. Frank said a view 



shed analysis has been done in response to concerns from the Agency of Natural Resources. 

Frank said AT&T is proposing a 40’ extension on the tower with closely mounted antennas. 

Previously there was a 60’ TV antenna on the tower but that was removed a few years ago. 

Frank said if they miss their construction window this fall, they won’t be able to do anything 

until spring. Frank then described the temporary trailer AT&T is planning to put on the Base 

Lodge parcel to house the equipment for their temporary tower until they can move forward 

with construction on the north peak. Frank described the temporary electrical service needed for 

the trailer. Frank said power to the Base Lodge is going to be turned off so AT&T wants to get 

the trailer and the temporary electrical service in place soon; both will be entirely on the Base 

Lodge parcel. Dick noted that the north peak tower is in Windsor. Frank said the town line is 

right there so it would be helpful to get a letter of support from West Windsor. Frank noted that 

the temporary tower, immediately south of the Base Lodge, is very close to the water lines. Win 

said there are two issues: a conflict between the trailer placement and the water project, and a 

potential conflict between the trailer location and the demolition of the Base Lodge. Frank said 

there’s some flexibility because it’s a trailer and it can be moved. Steve said, from Ascutney 

Outdoors’ perspective, the trailer should be as far from the lodge as possible. Steve said the 

timing of the demolition will depend on funding. Frank said he thinks AT&T will have their 

equipment out of the Base Lodge in four to six weeks. Steve said there’s no way Ascutney 

Outdoors would be demolishing the building in that time frame. Tom suggested talking with 

A+E and Manosh about running a few lengths of water pipe out toward Mountainside now so 

the trailer won’t interfere with that part of the project. Tom asked Frank to put stakes where the 

trailer is going. Frank suggested a meeting with AT&T’s contractor. Win said he thinks 

AT&T’s project is good for the town because it gets their equipment out of the Base Lodge and 

provides better cell coverage so he is okay with sending a letter of support. Tom agreed. Dick 

said he thinks the letter should say we have no objection because West Windsor is not a party to 

the application. Frank said abutting municipalities are usually asked for comments. Win moved 

to write ANR informing them of our interest in those two by-products of AT&T’s 

proposal. Tom seconded the motion. Tom asked about the telecommunications easement on 

the maintenance parcel. Frank said they looked at that but were not able to work out an 

agreement with Dan Purjes. Dick said improved coverage would benefit the town and it would 

also benefit the town if AT&T removes their equipment from the Base Lodge so it can be torn 

down. Dick called for a vote on the motion, which passed unanimously. Bruce asked about 

the temporary tower. Frank said that will be removed and the coverage will be better. Frank said 

AT&T’s application is on the Public Service Board’s website.  

6) Road/driveway drainage: Steve Bodley – Steve said water drains off the road into his driveway 

and creates a substantial puddle that remains for three or four days. Steve provided photos for 

the Selectboard. Steve described the changes to the road over the years and said he’d like to 

have some fill put in the low spot in his driveway so it drains properly. Steve asked if he’s 

responsible for filling in that low spot. Win asked if it’s in the right-of-way. Tom said yes. Mike 

said the town does not work on private driveways, whether they’re in the right-of-way or not. 

Mike asked Steve if he has ever added material to his driveway. Steve said yes; eight or nine 

years ago. Tom said if material is added to the driveway, the water can’t run off the driveway 

into the road. Win asked if the town has an obligation to address the problem. Dick said he 

doesn’t have a problem with the property owner raising the level of the driveway as long as it 

doesn’t create a situation that affects the road surface. Steve said he was wondering if the town 

could fill it in. Tom said he has no objection to the property owner re-grading his driveway to 

the satisfaction of the Highway Foreman. Win disagreed and said if it can be shown that the 

problem is a direct result of something the town did, he thinks we have an obligation to address 



it. Mike said the problem is not a result of work done by the town. Mike said you can’t go years 

without doing maintenance on your driveway; if the driveway were crowned properly, the water 

would run off. Tom said the town has always left it up to property owners to maintain their 

driveways. Tom moved to allow the property owner to re-grade his driveway to the 

satisfaction of the Highway Foreman. Dick seconded the motion. Win said, in the future, if 

it’s clear that a problem is caused by the town, then we need to take responsibility. Dick called 

for a vote on the motion, which passed unanimously.  

7) Discuss public assembly permits & fees for AO-sponsored events on town property – Win said 

he thinks all events that occur on property leased to Ascutney Outdoors (AO) are under the 

auspices of AO. Win said he thinks the event permit application should come from AO rather 

than the event sponsor. Martha said this item is on the agenda because Lucy Mac submitted an 

application for a 5K run on the property leased to AO and said it’s their understanding that 

there’s no fee because the event is through AO. Martha added that this item was discussed at an 

earlier Selectboard meeting and there was a motion to waive fees for AO-sponsored events but 

the motion was not acted on so it’s not clear whether or not the fee should be waived, nor is it 

clear that the event is under the auspices of AO since it was submitted directly to the town by 

Lucy Mac. Dick agreed that the application came from Lucy Mac, not AO, and requested use of 

the parking area, which is not part of the property leased by AO. Steve asked about the fee, 

which is $25. Steve said the 5K run is a joint event by Lucy Mac and AO, which AO is 

promoting. Steve explained AO’s current procedure. Win said he thinks AO should be the lead 

organization, or at least a co-applicant, on any application that involves the leased land. Dick 

read from the lease, which exempts AO from the public assembly ordinance for regularly 

scheduled events, but not for special events. Win agreed that Lucy Mac’s 5K run is a special 

event and therefore subject to the ordinance and the fee. Steve said the event has evolved from a 

Lucy Mac event to an event co-sponsored by Lucy Mac and AO. Win said he doesn’t think the 

town should approve events on land leased to AO without evidence that AO is a co-sponsor. 

Tom and Dick agreed. Bruce asked who will determine which events get priority if there is a 

conflict. Tom said the Selectboard should make that decision with AO’s input. Win said it’s 

complicated by the fact that AO is not leasing the parking area and most events will use it. Steve 

noted that AO is going to create an event calendar that can be linked to the town’s website. Win 

moved to request that the Lucy Mac application be re-filed with a better description of the 

event and AO as a co-applicant, subject to the fee for special events. Tom seconded the 

motion. Martha noted that the event is being held this weekend. Tom proposed waiving the fee 

since Lucy Mac does not charge the town a fee when it accepts lost dogs from the Selectboard 

in its role as Poundkeeper. Steve offered to pay the fee but asked if the fee would be waived for 

an event co-sponsored by AO. Win said no; not if it’s a special event. Steve said AO has a 

permit that they give to applicants for this sort of event. Steve asked if the town is requesting 

that AO file that permit with the town. Martha said the town has a separate application. Martha 

asked if the Selectboard is going to schedule another meeting this week to consider the 

application if it is re-filed. Win said he would amend his motion to approve it prospectively 

but it needs to be re-filed so that it adequately describes the event.  Win said he thinks we 

need to establish a process and AO needs to be front and center in that process. Steve agreed 

that Lucy Mac’s application should have come through AO. Dick said if they were going to use 

the property leased to AO and it was going to be a regularly scheduled event, then there would 

be no need for a permit but if they’re going to use an area not leased to AO, like the parking lot, 

then they do need a permit. Win noted that we have not defined “regularly scheduled” events. 

Dick said, going forward, if there’s an event on AO property then the application should come 

from AO. If it’s a regularly scheduled event, then there’s no fee or application required. If it’s a 



special event on AO’s property, then AO has to file an application. Win agreed. Dick moved to 

amend Win’s motion to approve the application and waive the fee. Tom seconded the 

amended motion. Mike pointed out that applications are supposed to be filed by a certain 

deadline. Dick agreed that the current ordinance requires applications to be filed sixty days in 

advance. Dick called for a vote on the amended motion, which passed unanimously. On 

another matter, Steve said AO hopes to own the Base Lodge parcel within the next month, 

which accelerates the need for AO to present their plan to the Selectboard, as required in the 

lease agreement. Win said, since AO’s plan would be part of the larger Community Forest 

Management Plan (CFMP) that the Conservation Commission (CC) is working on, AO should 

work with the CC. Steve said he thought there was an October 31 deadline. Dick read from the 

section of the lease that requires AO to provide a five year plan for the recreational component 

of the CFMP. Dick said the town and AO are also supposed to inventory all physical assets on 

the property and specify the operating and maintenance obligations of each party. There was 

discussion about the tax-exempt status of AO. Dick noted that, if AO acquires the Base Lodge 

parcel, it would not be subject to the lease or the conservation easement since the town would 

not own it. Win said it was the Selectboard’s hope that having CC Chair Ted Siegler as an ex-

officio member of AO’s Board would facilitate the planning that AO and the CC are doing. 

Steve said he will talk to Ted. Win suggested that AO get on the CC’s next agenda.  

8) Transportation grants: Katharine Otto – Katharine Otto from the Southern Windsor County 

Regional Planning Commission (SWCRPC) had some handouts about funding sources for 

transportation projects. Katharine noted the October 20 deadline for the Transportation 

Alternatives grant and described the application requirements, which are substantial because it’s 

a federal grant. Katharine noted the types of projects that are eligible and the match 

requirements. Martha said the amount of time involved in applying for federal grants is 

significant. Tom said he thinks we have a better chance of getting funding for stabilizing the 

Brownsville-Hartland Road bank. Dick said if the bank collapses, the town will get emergency 

funding. Martha said the timeline is very tight if we wanted to apply this year and would 

probably require her to drop everything else. Win said it’s important to consider funding sources 

as we develop our capital plan but he is concerned about the match and the amount of time 

involved given the things that are already on our plate. Katharine said the town can apply next 

year if we need more time to prepare. Win moved to pass over this opportunity for this year. 

Tom seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.  

9) Application for Public Assembly: Lucy Mac 5K-9 Run/Walk on Sunday, October 2, from 8:30 

AM until 12:30 PM at the Ascutney Trails on Ski Tow Road – see item #7 above. 

10) Consider adopting Event Ordinance – Dick suggested changing the ordinance to require 

applications to be filed thirty days in advance, rather than sixty days. Win agreed. There was 

discussion about the ordinance adoption process.  Win moved to adopt the West Windsor 

Ordinance Regarding the Conduct of Large Public or Private Events, noting the change to 

the deadline for filing in Section 3(A). Tom seconded the motion, which passed 

unanimously. Bruce requested a copy of the ordinance.  

11) Highway Foreman’s Report – Mike said mowing is done and ditching is in progress. Win 

complimented Mike for the Highway Department’s work on Hotel Road.  

12) Highway access application: Peter & Melanie Gale (Cowshed Trail) – Mike said he met with the 

contractor for the Gale property and he is satisfied with the proposed access. Tom moved to 

approve, noting that the access is on Cowshed Trail. Dick seconded the motion, which 

passed unanimously.  

13) Highway access application: Joseph Mazzarella (Village Lane) – Mike said he met with 

someone at the site. Mike said the applicant just wants a limited agricultural access. Martha said 



the application says “new or replacement culvert.” Martha said in the past if someone has two 

accesses on one lot they need conditional use approval by the DRB but maybe if it’s agricultural 

that’s not the case. Martha said she copied Preston so he can decide if DRB approval is required. 

Tom moved to approve the Mazzarella access on Village Lane, parcel #3-95, noting that 

the only thing being approved is the placement of a culvert. Dick seconded the motion, 

which passed unanimously.  

14) Water project update – Tom noted Jason’s email and said everything was buttoned up well for 

the Vermont 50. Dick said Jason’s email suggests that any contingency funds left over can be 

used for the Mountainside line. Win said we need all the information before we can make a 

decision. Tom asked if Manosh wants the town to make a decision by a certain date. Martha said 

Manosh could do the work next week but we’re not going to know where the money’s coming 

from by then. Win said we can wait to make a decision with the understanding that winter 

conditions could prevent Manosh from doing the work this year. Martha noted that winter 

conditions could also cause the price to increase. Regarding the discussion under #5, Martha 

noted that replacing the line to Mountainside is not currently part of the approved project.  

15) Discuss school sewer situation – Dick said Jason is waiting to hear whether Zaluzny is available 

to do the work and how much he would charge. Tom said he’d like to get Bob Moulton’s input. 

Win said he’s going to try to get “as built” plans for the school addition from the supervisory 

union. Win said we need design and cost information for the fix as soon as possible and then we 

can call a meeting.  

16) Review Conflict of Interest Policy – Dick said the DRB has its own policy. Martha said she 

thinks the Planning Commission does as well. Win moved to send the Conflict of Interest 

policy to the committee chairs for comment. Dick seconded the motion, which passed 

unanimously.  

17) Appoint Assistant Zoning Administrator to address back log – see item #4 

18) Other Business – Rules of Procedure: Win asked to have adoption of Rules of Procedure on the 

next agenda. Clock: Tom said the glass enclosure has to be enlarged slightly but there won’t be 

much of a change in the price. Snowmobile trail: Tom said the trail needs to be graded 

following the work on Bowers Road. Vermont 50: There was discussion about the race event, 

which went very well and the weather was beautiful.  

19) Approve Minutes – Tom said it would be nice to have the minutes sent to the Selectboard along 

with the agenda for the meeting. Dick noted that all the minutes are available on the town’s 

website. Win moved to approve the minutes of August 18, 22 and 23, and September 12 

and 14. Tom seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.  

20) Town Clerk/Treasurer’s Report – Win moved to authorize the Chair to sign two cemetery 

deeds. Tom seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.  

21) Sign Town Clerk’s orders – Win moved to sign orders. Tom seconded the motion, which 

passed unanimously. Tom said in the future he’d like to talk about some issues.  

22) Next regular meeting – The Selectboard’s next regular meeting will be on Monday, October 17, 

at 6:30 PM.  

23) Adjourn – Tom moved to adjourn at 10:38 AM. Win seconded the motion, which passed 

unanimously.  

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

 

Martha Harrison 



West Windsor Selectboard 

Draft Minutes 

September 12, 2016 

 

Present: Dick Beatty, Tom Kenyon, Win Johnson, Mike Spackman, Cathy Archibald, Martha Harrison, Jason 

Rasmussen (SWCRPC), Gary Burke, George Calver (VT Standard) 

 

1. Call to Order – Selectboard Chair Dick Beatty called the meeting to order at 6:30 PM.  

2. Changes or Additions to Agenda – possible AT&T easement from the Base Lodge to the maintenance lot 

for electrical power; Brownsville-Hartland Road near cemetery; furnace work; tree removal; utility 

management; discuss item #6 at next regular meeting because Al Keiller is not available tonight; August 

police report; Bowers Road encroachment on Burke property. 

3. Public Comment – None 

4. Town Clerk/Treasurer’s Report – Cathy suggested moving her report and orders to the end of the 

meeting. The Selectboard agreed.  

5. Sign Town Clerk’s orders – See #4 above. 

6. Certificates of Occupancy/Conformance: Al Keiller – reschedule for September 26 @ 8:00 AM. 

7. Fire Department Capital Budget: Jason Rasmussen – Jason provided the Selectboard with some excerpts 

from the draft budget, focusing on costly equipment that needs to be replaced in the near future. Dick 

noted that the projected cost for replacing the tanker and the ladder truck in the next two years is 

$500,000. Jason asked the Selectboard to consider whether or not they’re interested in moving the fire 

station and noted that the fire department received a grant for air packs so that item can be removed from 

the budget. Jason said the main question is how to fund the equipment that needs to be replaced. Win 

said he would like to look at the capital budget for the highway department and the fire department 

together. Win asked how much of the town’s current contribution to the fire station goes to operations. 

Mike said all of it. Mike said the fire department currently has $100,000 set aside for the ladder truck. 

The Selectboard suggested a few changes to the spreadsheet and Win volunteered to work with Jason on 

the capital budgets. Dick suggested that the fire department consider a donation program to help defray 

the costs.  

8. Correspondence: Kathy Frazer – Dick said, unfortunately, we have to go by the ordinance in determining 

the number of equivalent sewer users. Win noted that the Selectboard sympathizes with Kathy’s situation 

but has to comply with the current ordinance, which refers to the state schedule for non-residential uses. 

Tom noted that the property owner pays nothing for water. Win moved to send Kathy Frazer a letter. 

Tom seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.   

9. Inquiry re: Hartford Recycling Center – Dick noted that a resident asked about taking trash and 

recyclables to the Hartford Recycling Center, rather than the Weathersfield Transfer Station. Win said he 

thought Tom was going to discuss this issue with the Solid Waste District. Tom said if we’re going to 

pursue this, the Selectboard should send a letter. Win agreed but said we should find out first whether it’s 

even allowed. Martha said she called the Hartford Recycling Center but the person in charge was on 

vacation. Tom said the issue is that we would be diverting tonnage from our district to another district. 

Win asked Tom who he should contact to educate himself on this issue. Tom said Win should contact 

Tom Kennedy at the Regional Planning Commission.  

10. Application for Public Assembly: Doc’s Draft Hard Cider Tasting on Saturday, September 24 from 

10:00 AM until 6:00 PM at the Ascutney Mountain base area – Dick noted that the application was 

accompanied by a liquor license application for the event. Cathy noted that the town does not allow 

alcohol at the Town Hall because of the liability. Tom noted that the application for the Vermont 50 

Race indicated that no alcohol would be served. Martha said the applicant checked with Mike Silverman, 

the organizer of the Vermont 50, and Mike had no problem with the proposed cider tasting. Win said he 

thinks there should be one permit for the event and the event organizer should manage the different 

vendors. Dick said he thinks it’s a conflict to allow alcohol while everyone is coming in and setting up 

for the Vermont 50. Win asked if there are insurance implications, or if the town should ask Mike 

Silverman to be responsible for the cider tasting and indemnify the town. Dick said if we don’t allow 



alcohol on town property, we shouldn’t make exceptions; now that we own the property, we have the 

liability. Tom moved to deny the application. Dick seconded the motion, which passed 

unanimously. Win said, in the future, we should tell Mike Silverman that, if there are multiple facets to 

the event, they should all come in under one umbrella application.  

11. Highway Foreman’s Report – Bowers Road: Mike suggested discussing Gary Burke’s issue. Gary 

provided the Selectboard with a letter. Gary said the town put a trail on his property without consulting 

him. Gary said the town does have a right-of-way but it is closer to the brook and got washed out during 

the flood of 1973. Gary said he had Bob Farnsworth come and place markers on the property line. Mike 

said the culvert is still in the same place but the trail does swing more to the west as it intersects with 

Route 44. Gary said he’s trying to sell the property and doesn’t know how to explain the encroachment 

to a potential buyer. Mike asked if the right-of-way is 50’. Gary said yes. Win suggested a site visit. Tom 

asked if there’s a survey. Gary said yes; Farnsworth surveyed it while the road was still there so he knew 

where the center of the road was. The Selectboard agreed to meet at the site on Wednesday, September 

14, at 9:00 AM. Tom said he’d like the town to consider purchasing Gary’s property. Hotel Road: Mike 

said the blacktop has been removed from the entrance to the Windham Building parking lot to Skyhawk 

Lane; the highway department just needs to grade it. Dick said he doesn’t think the road should be 

repaved. Mike agreed. Re-paving: Mike said the two areas where culverts were replaced on Hotel Road 

and the Brownsville-Hartland Road will be repaved in late September, along with the apron for Coaching 

Lane. Mike said the highway department also fixed the bump in the road caused by the sewer line near 

the fitness center. Win asked how they fixed it. Mike said they removed the asphalt and added more 

material. Equipment: Mike said the loader and grader have been repaired. Mowing & blowing: Mike said 

they should be done mowing this week and then will start blowing out the ditches. Ditch: Tom asked 

about the ditch on the Brownsville-Hartland Road near the cemetery. Mike said they’re going to use 

recycled asphalt there when the paving is done.  

12. Consider adopting consolidated Speed Limit Ordinance – Martha said according to statute an ordinance 

passed without a proper traffic study is fine after five years. Martha said she’s not sure a study was done, 

for example, on the resort roads but, since it’s been five years, the ordinance is valid. Win asked Martha 

if she is concerned that adopting a new ordinance might re-start the clock. Martha said yes; she thinks we 

need a legal opinion. Dick asked about all the roads listed in the draft consolidated ordinance. Martha 

said some have a traffic study but no ordinance and some have an ordinance but no traffic study. Cathy 

suggested looking in the ordinance book. Win said the original VLCT model ordinance allowed speed 

limits to be set based either on a traffic study or abutting land uses, but now there has to be a traffic 

study. Win said he thinks Martha’s concerns could be addressed by noting the original adoption date next 

to each road. Tom said he’d like to add the word “specific” to Article 3. Tom also suggested noting in the 

purpose section that the town is establishing or affirming the speed limits. Dick said if we’re going to 

affirm existing speed limits and include their original adoption dates then we have to take out Article 9, 

which repeals all previously adopted speed limit ordinances. Win asked Martha to revise the ordinance 

so the Selectboard can re-consider it at their next meeting.  

13. Water project update – Martha noted Nate Pion’s email asking the town to confirm that we want to 

permanently discontinue service to the Base Lodge parcel. Win said it was his understanding that we 

would leave a stub for a future connection if a structure is ever rebuilt on the property. The Selectboard 

members agreed that they would like there to be a stub and a shut-off for a future connection. Martha 

will notify Nate. Martha noted that the town got its Permit to Operate and that she copied the Selectboard 

on her email to Matt Birmingham asking about the easements. Win asked if the town will be totally off 

Snowdance property when this project is complete. Martha said no. Dick noted that we have an 

easement. Tom said he thinks the town should run an 8” line to the east, past the Snowdance property 

line, so we don’t have to go back on Snowdance property in the future to upgrade the pipe to 

Mountainside. Win asked why we would do that if we have an easement. Tom said we don’t know what 

Snowdance is planning to do with the property. There was discussion about the cost of upgrading the 

pipe to Mountainside. Martha said Nate Pion revised his original estimate of $160,000; his new estimate 

is $75,000. Dick said he thinks Tom’s idea to get the 8” line onto town property is a good one. Win 

asked if the town is contractually obligated to upgrade the line. Dick agreed that we’re obligated to do it 



at some point. Tom noted that AT&T is planning to put a temporary structure next to the tower behind 

the Base Lodge. Win noted that he and Martha talked with Frank Kelley, who was representing AT&T, 

this morning. Win said, according to Frank, AT&T is going to run underground power for the temporary 

structure from the pole near the Base Lodge access road, across Snowdance property, and around the 

corner to the structure. AT&T apparently has permission to proceed from Snowdance. Win said Frank is 

going to come to the next Selectboard meeting because AT&T would like the town to support their 

permit application. Win said if there’s an ongoing lease, apparently AT&T is buying it out. Tom noted 

that, in excavating for the booster pump building, the contractor uncovered a drainage culvert that 

they’re going to replace. Win said he plans to attend the water system finance workshop on October 4
th
.  

14. Consider signing utility easement – The Selectboard granted an easement to Green Mountain Power 

(GMP) for the new electric line across town property. Win moved to authorize the Chair to sign the 

easement. Tom seconded the motion, which passed unanimously. Cathy said she will send the 

easement to GMP along with a check.  

15. Consider preventive maintenance contract with Kinsley Power for generators – Tom asked if our contract 

with Zaluzny covers preventive maintenance. Tom also suggested checking with Windsor to see who 

they use for this type of work. Tom said the sewer users should be responsible for preventive 

maintenance costs and Windsor should be responsible for making sure the maintenance is done as part of 

our O&M agreement with them. Win suggested talking with Tom Marsh about that. Tom moved to 

table consideration of this contract. Mike asked who would be responsible if the fuel runs out in the 

generators and there’s no way to get fuel here in an emergency. The Selectboard agreed that, as part of 

the maintenance, someone should be checking to make sure the generators have enough fuel.  

16. Brook Road demolition project update – Martha said the demolition is done and the property owners who 

allowed their property to be used as a staging area are happy that their property has been returned to its 

previous condition. Martha said she still needs some paperwork from the contractor having to do with 

closing the well and shipping the waste and, other than that, we just have to ask for reimbursement. Win 

said Upper Valley Land Trust is looking into acquiring the easement on the adjacent Crocker property 

and then accepting this property from the town. There was discussion about whether or not there needs to 

be a town vote to sell the property.  

17. Update on Town Hall projects – Tom said on October 16
th
 at 2:00 PM, the historical society is planning a 

centennial celebration and has requested the Selectboard’s attendance. Tom said the town hall clock will 

be reinstalled on September 22
nd

. Tom said additional funding is needed for repairing the holes created 

by the removal of the old heating system. Win asked how much is needed. Tom didn’t have an estimate. 

Win moved to proceed with the work of repairing the holes. Dick seconded the motion, which 

passed unanimously. Win asked Tom to find out if we can use the old furnace room. Tom said when the 

fire and safety officials come to inspect the repair work, he will ask them.  

18. Other Business – Sewer repairs: Mike noted that the repairs to the sewer system and the access road near 

Mountain’s Edge have been done and he has itemized the costs for Cathy. Tree removal: Tom said he 

has used up all but $500 of the tree removal budget. Tom said the property owners on Queen Victoria 

contacted him about dead trees. Tom asked for $4,000. Win moved to authorize spending $1,000 for 

one day of tree removal work. Dick seconded the motion, which passed unanimously. Ascutney 

Outdoors: Win said he attended a meeting on Saturday at which he heard that Ascutney Outdoors (AO) 

is no longer interested in purchasing the Cunningham Building because the cost of purchasing it, 

renovating it and bringing it up to code is too high. As an alternative, AO is once again looking at the 

burned-out Base Lodge site, which is owned by Snowdance. Win said Mark Blundell, who represents 

Snowdance, is apparently willing to part with the building for $1, provided there are no conditions on the 

sale. Win asked if the voters’ authorization, two years ago, for the town to purchase the building is still 

valid. Dick said he has never talked with Mark Blundell and he has only talked with Dan Purjes once - 

about demolishing the Base Lodge. Dick said he is hesitant to have the town get involved again in the 

purchase of the Base Lodge property. Win said he would like the Selectboard to meet with the interested 

parties and hear what they have to say. Dick said he doesn’t mind meeting with them but he doesn’t want 

the town to be stuck with the obligation of tearing the building down. Tom said the state has to issue a 

permit for the demolition of the building and asked about funding sources. Win said he doesn’t know; 



this is all new to him. The Selectboard agreed to meet with the interested parties. Utility management: 

Win said we need to figure out how we’re going to manage the water and sewer utilities going forward in 

a formal structured way. Glass for Town Hall clock: Tom said there’s going to be an additional expense 

of approximately $5,000 related to the glass enclosure for the clock. Win said we’ve had a lot of 

unanticipated projects and he doesn’t know where we stand. Dick asked if that’s the only additional item 

related to the clock. Tom said there’s some electrical work and some carpentry work. Win asked Tom to 

put together a budget for all the town hall expenses, along with how much we’ve spent so far and how 

much we still need to spend.  

19. Review revised Rules of Procedure – Win asked Tom and Dick if they’re ready to send the Rules out to 

the other boards and committees for comment. Martha said she spoke with VLCT this afternoon and they 

said elected boards (e.g. the BCA and the Board of Abatement) have to establish their own rules of 

procedure and the DRB also usually establishes its own rules. Win moved to send the Rules of 

Procedure to the other bodies for comment before adopting it as the uniform document for those 

bodies when they are not acting in a quasi-judicial capacity. Tom seconded the motion. The 

Selectboard agreed to ask for responses within 60 days. Dick called for a vote on the motion, which 

passed unanimously.  

20. Review revised Event Ordinance – Win noted the changes he made since the last discussion. Tom and 

Martha had a few suggestions for additional changes. Win said he will bring another draft to the next 

meeting.  

21. Review Conflict of Interest Policy – The Selectboard agreed to table this item.  

22. Town Clerk’s orders – Dick moved to sign orders. The motion passed with no objection. Win asked if 

the $1,063.91 is the last payment to Aldrich + Elliott on the sewer project. Martha said they still have to 

do our “as built” plans but she can ask them tomorrow if there will be other costs.  

23. Town Clerk’s report – Cathy had a cemetery deed for the Selectboard to approve. Tom moved to sign 

the deed. Win seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.  
24. Highway Access – Mike said he was asked about extending a highway access permit. After discussion, 

the Selectboard agreed that the applicant should re-apply. Mike said the applicant should re-stake the 

proposed location for the access.  

25. Police Report – Win asked if the Selectboard ever meets with the Police Chief. Dick said they meet once 

a year to discuss the amount of the payment. Win said he would like to meet once or twice a year to talk 

about things like speed monitoring. Martha will contact the Police Chief to arrange a meeting in October.  

26. Approve Minutes – The minutes were tabled until the next meeting. 

27. Anticipated Executive Session to discuss personnel matters and property acquisition – Tom suggested 

taking up this matter on Wednesday. Win said if we’re talking about acquiring the Burke property, then 

that would be appropriate.  

28. Adjourn – Tom moved to adjourn at 9:15 PM. Dick seconded the motion, which passed 

unanimously.  
 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

 

Martha Harrison 

 



West Windsor Selectboard 

Draft Minutes 

October 24, 2016 

 

Present: Dick Beatty (by phone), Tom Kenyon, Win Johnson, Mike Spackman, Deb Shearer, 

Martha Harrison, Cathy Archibald 

 

1) Call to Order – Selectboard Vice Chair Tom Kenyon called the meeting to order at 8:00 AM. 

2) Changes or additions to the agenda – No overnight camping signs; amendments to Events 

Ordinance; speed limit ordinance; use of Town Hall 

3) Announcements/Public Comment – None 

4) Town Clerk/Treasurer’s Report – None 

5) Sign Town Clerk’s orders – This item was moved to the end of the meeting.  

6) Application for Public Assembly by Ascutney Outdoors for a 1980’s Dance Party at the Town 

Hall on Saturday, December 10, from 7:00 PM until 10:00 PM – Win asked about the policy for 

use of the Town Hall. Cathy said it’s fine for a local non-profit organization to use the hall for a 

fundraiser and it’s fine for an individual to offer free classes (e.g. Bone Builders). In other 

words, Win said, the town doesn’t rent out the hall for commercial uses. Cathy said that is 

correct. Deb said the dance event is a fund-raiser for Ascutney Outdoors, with live music. Win 

moved to approve the application. Tom seconded the motion. Tom clarified that the band is 

the Davis Brothers and asked Deb to check with the school about parking. Tom called for a 

vote on the motion, which passed unanimously.     

7) Consider changes to Burglar Alarm Policy – Dick noted an email from Chief Sampson 

suggesting an increase in the fines for false alarms. Martha said Windsor is currently revising 

their false alarm ordinance. Win asked about Windsor’s timeframe for revising their ordinance 

and suggested that West Windsor consider adopting an identical ordinance to make things easier 

for the officers to enforce. Dick asked how many people have alarm systems and who they 

register with. Tom said a lot of people have systems; the alarm goes to the alarm company and 

they notify the appropriate emergency responders. Dick agreed that we should look at 

Windsor’s policy. Win moved to table action on this item and get a copy of Windsor’s 

current policy and a timeline for its amendment. Tom seconded the motion, which passed 

unanimously.  

8) Highway Foreman’s Report – Mike said the 2012 truck just had $5,500 in repairs. Mike said the 

truck is 400 hours beyond its warranty so it’s time to replace it. Mike said the ditching is done 

and hydro-seeding will be done this week. Mike noted that a number of area highway garages 

have been broken into over the past two weeks so it’s a good thing that we have an alarm 

system. Mike said there’s a road foreman’s meeting at the garage on November 4
th

. Win 

suggested asking other towns how they’re handling issues associated with the build-out of EC 

Fiber. Mike said we may end up having a 1000’ section of EC Fiber cable buried in the right-of-

way but he would like to avoid that if possible.  

9) Hotel Road speed limit – Mike said he took down the speed limit signs on Hotel Road because 

it’s illegal to have a speed limit under 25 MPH on a town highway. Mike said he’s hoping the 

regional planning commission can do a traffic study for us but that may not happen until next 

spring. Win suggested putting up 25 MPH signs now and having the study done as soon as 

possible. Dick agreed that the travelling public needs some guidance as to a reasonable speed 

for the road. Win moved to set the speed limit for Hotel Road at 25 MPH. Tom seconded 

the motion, which passed unanimously. Win said he would like to discuss the consolidated 

speed limit ordinance at the next meeting.  



10) Discuss Fire Department’s equipment needs – Win said he is drafting a capital budget for 

discussion but would like to review it with Mike before presenting it to the Selectboard.  

11) Access to warming hut – Dick said at the DRB’s recent public hearing a question was raised 

about access to the warming hut by motor vehicle over the maintenance parcel. Dick said the 

DRB recessed the hearing until November 9
th

 to allow the applicant to discuss the issue with 

Mike in his capacity as Highway Foreman and Fire Chief, and to allow the Selectboard to 

consider it. Dick said he would like this item to be on the November 7
th

 agenda. Tom asked if 

the town is going to continue to access the water system over the Base Lodge parcel. Win said 

this issue was discussed with AO last spring before the culvert had been repaired. Win said he 

thinks the access over the repaired culvert should be gated. Mike agreed. Dick said he thinks all 

of these access issues should be discussed on November 7
th

. Mike asked who would maintain 

the access. Dick said the town and AO would need to discuss that. Tom suggested a site visit. 

Win suggested that AO be invited to the site visit. Win also suggested a special meeting to talk 

about budget matters. Mike asked if the highway department still needs to maintain the Base 

Lodge driveway. Dick said AT&T would be the only entity that would need access. Dick said 

the town has the right to use it now, while our pumps are in the burned-out lodge but we would 

have to research whether or not we could continue to use it once the pumps are in the new 

building. Mike said it sounds like we have no reason to maintain the Base Lodge access road 

once the pumps are out of the building. Tom asked about AT&T’s plans. Martha said they want 

to move their equipment into a temporary trailer by mid-November. Dick said once the town’s 

equipment is out of the building, it would be AT&T’s responsibility to maintain the access road. 

Tom said if the town uses the repaired culvert to access the water system, the rope tow and ski 

slope would not be affected. Win agreed that a site visit and discussion would be a good thing 

and suggested inviting AT&T. Dick suggested having everyone who has an interest in 

accessibility weigh in. The Selectboard tentatively scheduled a site visit for Friday, October 28, 

at 2:00 PM. Win noted that AO is technically in violation of the zoning regulations because they 

are already installing the lights.  

12) Discuss demolition of old lodge – Win said environmental assessments have to be done and 

permits have to be obtained before the building can be demolished. Win said the firm that is 

going to do the assessment of the burned-out Base Lodge for Ascutney Outdoors (AO) has 

agreed to assess the old lodge as well for just over $1,000. Win said AO will pay for the 

assessment but, since the town owns the building, he thinks the town should authorize them to 

have it done. Once the assessment is done, Win said, we’ll know what permits are needed. Win 

said AO hopes to be able to proceed as planned and demolish the building primarily with 

volunteer help, burning the non-hazardous material with the Fire Chief’s permission. Win said 

AO’s original estimate for the work was $2,500 so, barring anything unforeseen, AO’s budget 

for this project is under $4,000 and they are planning to raise the funds for the demolition. Win 

moved to authorize Ascutney Outdoors to proceed with an environmental assessment of 

the old lodge. Dick seconded the motion, which passed unanimously. Tom said it’s his 

understanding that the regional planning commission has approved funding for the assessment 

of the burned-out Base Lodge. Win said yes; they have authorized a Brownfields grant to assist 

with environmental remediation.    

13) Water project update – Tom said the pipe for the line to Mountainside has arrived and the 

booster pump building is coming along fine. Regarding the electric line, Tom said the poles 

have been installed by FairPoint and Green Mountain Power. Win said it’s disappointing that 

the state has not approved our loan yet.  

14) Consider proposal for school sewer connection repair (if available) – No proposal is available. 

Martha said All Seasons Construction cannot do the work and Dan Lesnick has not worked with 



Davis-Bacon before. Win said A+E is inquiring with Jon Murphy and Matt Waters to see if 

they’re available and interested. Win said he had a call from the Superintendent and explained 

that we are doing the best we can. Win said he asked the highway department to put additional 

barriers around the hole for safety reasons. Win offered to follow up with Jon Murphy.  

15) Other Business – Parking lot signs: Win said the Windsor Police Chief suggested that the town 

put up two “No overnight parking or camping” signs in the big parking area and one in the 

Coaching Lane parking area. Mike asked about fines or towing to enforce the policy. Win said 

the Selectboard has not discussed that yet. Dick said putting up signs is a step in the right 

direction. Mike said he thought there was an existing sign listing prohibited activities. Deb said 

there was a sign but she’s not sure if it’s still there. Win said now that there’s a conservation 

easement in place, there’s a new governing entity, i.e. the Upper Valley Land Trust. In that case, 

Mike said, we should review all the signage. Dick suggested putting two signs in the big parking 

area and getting input from AO on the Coaching Lane parking area. Dick said AO is supposed 

to have the leased area under control. Win said we should also look at the conservation 

easement. For now, the Selectboard agreed to place a sign at each entrance to the big parking 

area. Mike noted that there’s also an issue with parking in the helicopter landing zone on the 

east end of the parking area. MountainFunds Solar: Win said he would like to discuss the net 

metering agreement when Dick is available. Event Ordinance: Win said he made some 

suggestions to address the public notice issues that have come up. The Selectboard agreed to put 

the suggestions on the agenda for consideration at their November 7
th

 meeting.  

16) Approve Minutes - October 17 & 18: Win moved to approve the minutes of October 17 & 

18. Tom seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.  

17) Adjourn – Win moved to sign orders and adjourn at 9:15 AM. Tom seconded the motion, 

which passed unanimously.  

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

 

Martha Harrison 



West Windsor Selectboard 

Draft Minutes 

November 28, 2016 

 

Present: Dick Beatty, Tom Kenyon, Win Johnson, Al Keiller, Cathy Archibald, Martha Harrison 

 

1) Call to Order – Selectboard Chair Dick Beatty called the meeting to order at 8:00 AM.  

2) Changes or additions to the agenda – schedule December meetings, hydrants, public assembly 

application for Town Hall tree lighting 

3) Announcements/Public Comment – Tom noted the passing of Betty Lemire.  

4) Town Clerk/Treasurer’s Report – None 

5) Sign Town Clerk’s orders – Win moved to sign orders at the end of the meeting. Tom 

seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.  

6) Consider approving audit proposal from John Mudgett – Win said the audit will include a 

management letter. Win moved to approve the proposal and sign the letter of engagement. 

The cost will be in the range of $9,500 to $10,500 and will include water and sewer. Tom 

seconded the motion, which passed unanimously. Win moved to authorize Dick to sign the 

letter of engagement on behalf of the Selectboard. Tom seconded the motion, which passed 

unanimously.  

7) ZA/AA job description – Win suggested considering candidates who hold similar positions in 

neighboring towns. Al said he will consult with Preston Bristow to discuss potential candidates 

who might be able to attend the Planning Commission meeting on Thursday. There was 

discussion about requirements for posting the job opening. Martha asked the Selectboard if they 

want to trim the job description so it just includes zoning responsibilities. The Selectboard 

agreed to keep the description the same for now and include other administrative work. Al asked 

for a copy of the job description. Win moved to post the job description and reach out to 

neighboring towns. Tom seconded the motion, which passed unanimously. Cathy noted that 

the minutes need to be copied into the permanent record.   

8) Highway Foreman’s Report – Damaged truck: Mike said the parts are being ordered and the 

truck may be ready by the end of January. Meanwhile, Mike said, the town is renting a truck 

from Waters Excavation. Mike said the VT League of Cities and Towns will pay up to $4,100 

per month for a rental. Mike said he negotiated a price of $1,500 plus $75 per hour of use. Mike 

said the town will put a rider on our insurance policy to cover the rented truck. Mike is drawing 

up a contact. Maintenance parcel road: Win asked if the road is done. Mike said yes. Mike said 

the total cost was $2,012 for equipment and $1,731.93 for materials, for a total of $3,743.93. 

The Selectboard agreed that the cost should be divided between Ascutney Outdoors, the town 

and the water department. Junk groomers: Dick asked what’s going to happen to the junk 

groomers on the parcel. Win said they should be included in the salvage operation. Tom 

suggested asking Ascutney Outdoors for a detailed list of what they want. Win suggested 

inviting AO to the next meeting to talk about salvage. Mike said Hodgkins Brothers will take 

everything but the town won’t get any money for it. Tom suggested limiting the salvage 

operation to the maintenance parcel at this point. Win agreed that the operation should not 

extend up the mountain at this time of year. Snowmaking shack: Dick asked if the snowmaking 

shack will be maintained or demolished. Win suggested reviewing that with AO. Employee 

reviews: Mike said the Selectboard needs to schedule annual reviews for the Highway 

Department employees. 2018 truck: Mike said we need to order the 2018 truck soon. Win noted 

that replacing the 2012 truck is in the capital budget, but the draft budget includes a four-year 

loan so the Selectboard should review it. Dick asked Mike if he has considered leasing. Mike 



said he looked into it awhile back but he can look into it again. Tom noted that the town usually 

modifies its trucks to meet its specific needs and he doesn’t know if we could do that with a 

leased vehicle. Water & sewer inventory: Mike said he thinks the water & sewer utilities need a 

home, where they can store tools, equipment and spare parts, and he thinks the maintenance 

garage would be a good place for that. Win agreed that it should be discussed in context with the 

Burke property. Mike said all repairs are hired out right now; there are no pipes, valves, or 

anything available. Win agreed that we need to talk about utility management, including A+E’s 

recommendations, and noted that we don’t have a water ordinance yet. Win suggested 

discussing the situation with the Town of Windsor and Patricia Beavers. Dick agreed that the 

maintenance garage would be a good headquarters for the utilities but noted that we can’t have 

actual office space in the building due to environmental conditions. Tom said he’s not sure we 

need a spare parts inventory.    

9) Water project update – Tom said we’re still waiting on the control panel, which is holding up 

everything. Win said he was upset when he saw the hydrants and he thinks A+E should have 

discussed the options with us. Martha said Bob Moulton did mention the hydrant issue to her. 

Mike said he mentioned it to him too. Martha said Mike had wanted a hydrant by the road but 

they couldn’t put it there because that’s not where the water line is so they decided to put a 

hydrant on either side of the ski bridge. The water line is under the road and is too deep to 

access so the hydrants will enable a bypass if there’s a break in the line. Dick said we need to 

know what AO’s plans are. Win said it’s his understanding that AO is considering a handle lift 

coming from Cunningham’s to below the ski bridge. Dick said the town doesn’t own the 

property below the ski bridge. Win asked Mike if he is ordering tile. Mike said yes. Tom said 

the idea is to put a well tile over the top with a cap so a groomer can cross it without damaging 

it. Mike said if there is a break in the winter time, both well tiles will be destroyed getting the 

water line reconnected. Dick said he doesn’t think the hydrant below the bridge is on town land. 

Martha said we have an easement. Mike said that’s another reason not to move the hydrant; you 

can’t move it out of the easement area unless you get another easement. Dick said it’s his 

understanding that we do have easements for all the underground water pipes. AT&T’s trailer: 

Martha said she’s seen a lot of emails about the location for AT&T’s temporary trailer. Dick 

said he thinks that has been resolved. Tom agreed. Dick noted that the Base Lodge cannot be 

demolished until the booster pumps for the water system, and AT&T’s cell tower equipment, 

have been removed from the building.  

10) Consider net metering agreements – Dick said he met with the School Board to review the draft 

agreement and now we’re waiting for a final draft from Gravel & Shea. In the meantime, Dick 

said the town was contacted by Next Sun offering to provide 215,000 kWh annually at a 

discount of 13% for 25 years. Dick said, in comparison, the town could get out of its agreement 

with MountainFunds with 90 days’ notice, would have limited liability, and would have 20% of 

the output reserved. Martha said the total estimated usage for the school, the town buildings and 

the water system is 213,775, not including the street lights or the alarm. Win suggested asking 

Next Sun if they’re flexible about the 25 year term. Dick said he would like to review Next 

Sun’s group net metering agreement. The Selectboard agreed to table this matter until they have 

more information.  

11) EC Fiber representative – The Selectboard accepted Dave Halpert’s resignation with regret and 

appreciation for his many years of service. Win moved to appoint Ken Parrot as the town’s 

primary EC Fiber representative. Tom seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.  

12) Utility management – Win would like to reserve time in the next month or two to meet with 

Windsor, A+E, Patricia and Martha to talk about a long-range utility management plan, with 

that being the only item on the agenda. Dick and Tom agreed.    



13) Town property: usage, improvements, signage, easements, etc. – Mike said the “No Parking” 

signs have been installed. Martha said The Climb Fitness Center has asked to put up a sign 

about their membership sale. The Selectboard had no concerns about the request. Tree lighting: 

Tom moved to approve the application. Win seconded the motion, which passed 

unanimously.  

14) Other Business – Schedule meetings: The Selectboard scheduled meetings for December 5
th

, 7
th

, 

15
th

, 19
th

, 21
st
 and 28

th
. The Selectboard also agreed to meet on January 4

th
 to sign the warning 

for Town Meeting. Martha asked if we’re going to have a bond vote for the fire truck at Town 

Meeting. Win said the Selectboard will have to review the capital budget and decide. Memorial 

bench: Mike said he’d like to suggest getting a granite bench in memory of Ralph Johnson, to be 

placed on Town Hall property, with the cost to be covered by the town and the fire department. 

The Selectboard agreed with Mike’s suggestion.  

15) Approve Minutes: November 4, November 7 (morning), November 7 (evening) – Win moved 

to approve the minutes. Tom seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.  

16) Adjourn –Win moved to adjourn at 9:38 AM. Tom seconded the motion, which passed 

unanimously.  

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

 

Martha Harrison 



Community	Relations	Plan		
Former	Ascutney	Mountain	Resort	Base	Lodge	

December	15,	2016	
	

	 	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	

APPENDIX	C	
	

COMMUNITY	AND	GOVERNMENTAL	SUPPORT	CORRESPONDENCE	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	





From: Glenn Seward <gbs@shelleyseward.com>
Subject: Fwd: Mt. Ascutney P.O.A Support
Date: December 13, 2016 at 10:01:40 AM EST
To: Alan Liptak <alan@leenv.net>

Here it is, have a great day.

From: Glenn B. Seward
Director of Operations 
Commonwealth Financial Network 
85 Mechanic Street, Suite 250
Lebanon, NH  03766
Phone 603.448.4441
               802.230.6146 mobile 

This e-mail including attachments, is intended for the exclusive use of the 
addressee and may contain proprietary, confidential, or privileged information. If 
you are not the intended recipient, any dissemination, use, or copying is strictly 
prohibited. If you have received this e-mail in error, please notify me via return e-
mail , permanently delete the original message and destroy all copies.

Begin forwarded message:

From: Brian Quirk <quirkbrian@yahoo.com>
Date: December 13, 2016 at 9:43:30 AM EST
To: Glen Seward <gbs@shelleyseward.com>
Cc: John Bossen <johnb@richcap.com>, Jeff and Tracy Nelson 
<jhnelson3@aol.com>
Subject: Mt. Ascutney P.O.A Support

Glenn,
This note is being written as a letter of support by the Mt. Ascutney Property 
Owners Association (P.O.A) for the tear down of the burned out lodge located on 
the mountain. 
The burned down lodge has been a blight for far too long and having it removed 
will be a positive impact for the community. 
I have had many community members inquire about the status of the burned 
lodge eyesore. With many asking when the building would be torn down. Their 
concerns were many including; safety , environmental and aesthetics for the 
community. 
The P.O.A community had learned of the possibility of Ascutney Outdoors 
acquisition of the property with the intent to tear down the Burned lodge at our 
October meeting. The response was  
" how soon can this happen". 
The Mt. Ascutney Property Owners Association is in full support of the Ascutney 
Outdoors effort to tear down and remove the burned lodge. 

mailto:quirkbrian@yahoo.com
mailto:gbs@shelleyseward.com
mailto:johnb@richcap.com
mailto:jhnelson3@aol.com


Regards
Brian Quirk
President 
Mt. Ascutney Property Owners Association

Sent from my iPad



December 12, 2016 
 
 
Owen S. Crihfield, Chair 
Mt. Ascutney Outdoors 
P.O. Box 101 
Brownsville, VT 05037 
 
Dear Steve, 
 
As Chair of the Town of West Windsor Planning Commission, I fully support the 
application by Mt. Ascutney Outdoors for funding to demolish the Base Lodge at the 
former Ascutney Mountain Resort, which was destroyed by fire in January of 2015. 
The burned-out Base Lodge is an eyesore and a nuisance.   It is in the best interest of 
the town for the building to be demolished as soon as possible.  
 
In addition, it is understood that there is asbestos in the building.  The building is 
located in the source protection area for the West Windsor Mountain Water System, 
a public water supply acquired by the town last December. Clearly, it’s in the best 
interest of the water system, and the 260 users who rely on the system for safe 
drinking water, to eliminate any environmental hazards in the source protection 
area. 
 
Regards, 
 
 
 
Alan C. Keiller,  
Chair, Planning Commission, Town of West Windsor 
	






